IN THE NAME OF ALLAH

HE MAKE YOU RULE IN THE LAND.
THEN HE WILL SEE HOW YOU ACT

(
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His Highness Sheikh
Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Jaber Al-Sabah
The Amirof the State of Kuwait

His Highness Sheikh

Mohammad Sabah Al-Salem Al-Sabah
The Prime Minister of the State of Kuwait
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Board of Directors' Report

Inthe name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Mast Merciful All pralse is due to Allah. the Lord
af all worlds, and blessings and peace be upon cur Prophet Muhammad, and upon his family
and campanions.

Dear esteemed shareholders,

Viith utmost gratitude and sppreciation, | extend my deepest gratitude an behall of myself and
my colleagues on the Board of Direclors and the Executive Management for your attendance to
the ordinary Annual General Meeling of Al-Enma'a Real Estate Company It brings me great
pleasure to welcome you warmly and present to you the annual repart covering the company's
performance, financial position, and administrative status for the fiscal year ending on
31/10/2023, including the company's significant accomplishmants and operational performance
across its various aclivities during this year, encampassing the major challenges faced.

Dear shareholders,

By the grace of All2n Almighty, Al- Enma'a Real Estate Company has successfully malntained its
continuity ane provision of required services in the state of Kuwail, through the commitment 1o
developing its operational activities and providing valuable services to its clients, The company
has laken numerous mezsures and staps to ensure liquidity. managing and monitaring cash
flows, and implementing effective cost-cutting measures, including a digital transformation 1o
ensure conlinuity of aperatianal activities.

| express deep gratitude to all our esteemed clients for their support and trust, We pledge lo
continue working towards achieving the company's future objectives and further success. Inma
Real Estate continued its efforts to strengthen its position in the real pstate market and enhance
its performance by focusing on real estate activities, conducting zuclions, and mitigating losses
fram contracting projects that affected the financial data for the vear. The company achieved a
net profit ot 1010.316 Kuwaiti Dinars. The company continued its policy centered on organizing
operational and administrative costs through implementing austerily measures.

We will continuously strive to develop our rzal estate services In the (ocal market. fecusing on
expanding our real estate portfolio and increasing our business scope in the coming years to
achieve better returns and strengthen our role in the market.
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Company’s Financial Results:

The net profit for the year 2023 amountad to 1,010,316 Kuwaiti Dinars, while the total shareholders'
equity reached 42,130,073 Kuwaiti Dinars compared to 41,125,027 Kuwaiti Dinars in the pravious
year. The company achieved a profit from operational activities amaunting to 1,065 BS7 Kuwaiti
Dinars compared to a loss of (68 552) Kuwaiti Dinars in the previous year, and the company's
Uabilities decreased to 19,882,162 Kuwaiti Dinars compared to 22,647,218 Kuwaiti Dinars in the
previous year. Earnings per share increased to 2.24 lils compared ta 0.52 fils in the previous
year.

In conclusion, we thank and praise Allah, hoping that our efforts will be crowned with success
in achieving the objectives and aspirations of the campany and its shareholders, for the
betterment and service of our beloved nation. Under the leadership and guidance of His Highness
the Amir of the country, Sheikh Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Jaber Al-Sabah, may Allah protect him.

| extend my gratitude and appreciatian to the shareholders, members of the Board of Diractors,
and all employees of the company for their sincere and cedicated efforts in serving the interests
of the company and the shareholders and in elavating its parformance

/ \_\
/’ﬁ‘ o
|
/
(g
Saleh Turki Al<Khamees

Chairman
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Enmaa Real Estate Company KSC

To respect shareholders of Enmaa Real Estate Company, Peace be with you, and
peace be with our Messenger Muhammad and His Family and companions
altogether,, then

We examined and approved the policies, agreement, products, services and activities
made by Enmaa Real Estate Company during the financial year of 2022-2023, and sa
we made due revisions to give opinion aboul how far Enmaa Real Estate Company
complies with the principles of Islamic sharia via the fatwas, resolutions and
instructions we issued, And in for the forms of contracts and agreements made by
the company were revised and approved.

And so all pieces of information and clarifications, we deemed necessary, were
acquired, so as to provide us with enough evidences for an admissible and plausible
confirmation that Enmaa Real Estate Company didn’t violate the provisions and rules
of Islamic Sharia in all transactions provided to us via the periodic reports submitted
by the sharia controller.

And via the procedures and steps we followed to verify the compliance of Enmaa Real
Estate Company with provisions of Islamic sharia, we found the following:

1- The contracts and transactions made by Enmaa Real Estate Company during the
financial year ended were made according to principles of Islamic sharia.

2- The calculation of Zakat was made pursuant to Islamic sharia provisions and
principles.

Dr. Sayed Mohamed Abdulrazag AlSayed |brahim Altabtabaie

. — ~
LR o
il
r/ﬂ’,- )/f

Dr. Anwar Shuaib Abdulsalam
Authority Member Authority Member
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Financial Indicators

Sharshoider's Equity
Kuwaiti Dinar
44,940,778
WY, 43,661,195
I 41,086,828 41,125,027 42,130,073
2018 2020 2021 2022 2023
Profit (loss)
1,704,380 Kuwsit Dinar

1,010,316

(459,638)

(1,862,587)

2018 2020 2021 2022 2023
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Financial Indicators
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Acknowledgement and Undertaking for Accuracy and Integrity of Financial
Statements for the year ended 3] October 2023

We, as the Chairman and Board Members of Al- Enmaa Real Estate Co. (KSCP) undertake
and acknowledge the accuracy and integrity of financial statements provided to the
external auditor, and that the company financial reports were presented in a sound
and fair manner and in accardance with the internaticnal financiat standards applied
inthe slate of Kuwait and il expresses the company financial standing as on 31 Oclober
2023 and this is upon that was provided to us in terms of informaticn and reports frem
company’s executive management and auditors, where due diligence has been taken

to verily the Integrity and accuracy of thase reports.

SalalTurkl Al-Khamees
Chalrman
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AL-ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY
K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 OCTOBER 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AL ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion |
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Enma’a Real Estate Company
K.S.C P (the” Parent Company™) and its subsidianes (collectively “the Group™), which comprnise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 October 2023, and the consohdated
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of cash flows and consohidated statement of changes m equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated fmancial statements, mcluding a summary of significant accounting

In our opmion, the accompanymg consolidated fmancial statements present fairly, m all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 October 2023, and
its consolidated financial performance and 1ts consohdated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Fiancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit m accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further descnibed m the Auditor s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group m accordance with the Infernational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code aof Ethics for Professional Accountamis (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
m accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtamed is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimon.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, m our professional judgment, were of most significance
m our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cument year. These matters were
addressed m the confext of our audit of the consohdated financial statements as a whole, and m
forming our opimion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opmion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided m that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reports, includng in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, mcluding the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AL-ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continned)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Aundit Matters (continned)

Valuation of investment properties

The mvestment properties represent a significant part of the total assets (66%) of the Group,
thhamymgvahxeofKD40707 847 at the reporting date.

The fair value of Group’s investment properties have been determined by external real estate
appraisers. The determination of fair value of the investment properties is highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as rental value, mamtenance status, market knowledge and
historical fransactions. Gwenthesmeandoomplexxtyofthevalnahonofmvmhnuﬂpmpahm
and the importance of the disclosures relating to the assumptions used in the valuation, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.

We have challenged the appropriateness of the properties’ related data supporting the external
1sers’ valuations. We performed additional procedures for areas of higher nsk and
estimation. This included, where relevant, comparison of judgements made to current market
practices and challenging the valuations on a sample basis. Further, we have considered the
objectivity and expertise of the extemnal real estate appraisers. We also assessed the
of the disclosures relating to the investment properties of the Group in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group's 2023 Annual Report
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the
information included m the Group’s 2023 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtamed the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining
sectmnsoftheAmanepmtaﬁuthedateofmaudmrsmpon

Our opmion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other mformation identified and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

1ally inconsistent with the consohdated financial statements or our knowledge obtained m
the audit, or otherwise appears fo be matenally misstated If, based on the work we have
performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AL-ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (contmued)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consohidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to contmue as a gomg concem, disclosing, as apphicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either mtends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseemg the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the consohidated financial
statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are
considered matenial if, mdividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consohidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintam
professional scepticism throughout the audit We also:

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks,
and obtam audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion.
The nisk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one
resultmg from emor, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtam an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate m the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s mtemal control.

+ Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AL-ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AnﬁhrsRspomﬂ)ikmforﬁeAndnof&chsoMademmdSm(m-ud)
+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gomg concem basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtamed. whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a matenal umcertamty exists, we are required fo draw
attenfion m our auditor’s report to the related disclosures m the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to modify our opimion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtamed up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may canse the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consohdated financial
represent the underlymg transactions and events m a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial mformation of the entifies
or business activities withm the Group to express an opmion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
andit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We commmmicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timmg of the audit and significant audit findmgs, including any significant

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commmmicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
whmeq;ﬂimble,acﬁonstkatoelinﬁnabﬂnutsormkgnardsappﬁed

that were of most significance in the andit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
peniod and are therefore the key audit matters. We descnbe these matters m our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commmmicated m our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubhic mterest
benefits of such commmmication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AL-ENMA’A REAL ESTATE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, m our opimon proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and
the consolidated financial statements, together with the confents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relatng to these consolidated financial statements, are m
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtaned all the mformation and
that we required for the purpose of our andit and that the consolidated financial statements
mcorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended,
and its executive regulations, as amended. and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an mventory was duly camed out and that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Compames Law No.1 of 2016, as amended,
and its executive regulations. as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of
ion and Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 October 2023
that might have had a matenial effect on the busmess of the Parent Company or on its financial

35
We further report that, duning the course of our audit, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
have not become aware of any matenal violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010

concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related regulations during the year ended 31
2023 that might have had a matenal effect on the business of the Parent Company or on 1fs

SR
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K S.C P. and its Subsidianies

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 October 2023

REVENUES
Revemne from services rendered
Revernme from construction contracts

COST OF REVENUES

Cost of services rendered
Cost of real estate activities
Cost of construction contracts

GROSS PROFIT

(Allowance for) reversal of expected credit losses T&8

PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

Unrealized (loss) gam on revaluation of investment properties
Realized gain on sale of mvestment property

Realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Profit from imvestment deposits

Oxher income

Finance costs on murabaha payables

Finance costs on lease Babilities 5

FROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO EUWAIT
FOUNDATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SCIENCES
(“KFAS”), PROVISION FOR NATIONAL LABOUR SUFPORT TAX
(“NLST") AND ZAKAT

EFAS
NLST
Zakat

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

o

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 3
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2023 2022
XD D
6,238 413 5,770,146
1,846,551 1,881,866

13,724 1,549,667
8,098 688 920,679
(4,316,777) (4,464,713)
(717 997) (446,995)
(663 826) (3332274)
(3,698,600) (8,243,982)
2,400,088 957,697
(100,126) 193,468
(1,234,105) (1219.717)
10653857 (68,552)
(242,150) 379,543
348,617 =
= (177)
359,807 107.257
106316 293,092
(524,074) (338279)
(54,422) (138,622)
1,059,951 234262
(8,569) =
(29333) -
(11,733) >
1010316 234262
224 fils 052 fils




Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C_P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPERHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 October 2023

2023 2022
KD KD
Profit for the year 1010316 234262
Other comprehensive loss:
Trams that will not be reclassified subsequently to the consolidased
Siatement of income:
Change in fair vaiue of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (5,270) (196,063)
Other comprebensive loss for the year (3,270) (196,063)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,005 046 38,199

The attached notes 1 to 25 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Al-Eama’a Real Estatz Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 31 Ocobes 2023

2625 2022
Nower KD (8]
ASSETS
Nam-current assets
Propecty, phct i ecwiproest 100,238 R
Investmer: properues 4 A0T07.847 41901816
Invesunar’s (o aseoclae 9745 9,79
Financiz] zeszes 2 fair value throngh ofes comgrehansive income 6 340350 373025
Awconns pecvuble s odvr st 3 791,895 752,114
Right of uxc asxts § 061,936 2548500
43002241 44679350
Current assets
Invenories 11065 34 850
Contract £53s 7 123,168 954,330
Avcouns pece;vable i odiey pss 3 6430167 6355 AN7
Invesumer: deposizs 8.10 8155774 QT 162
Barck palasces and cach 10 4.390.363 2032590
19,109,954 1YW SES
TOLAL ASSETS 62012235 LERaries bl
EQUITY AND LIAEILITIES
Equity
Share capiinl 11 45,053,468 45,055 463
Swtory e 12 L% (L] -
Velunary reserve 13 95204 -
Cunraksiive oikrages i fidr valves reveove 3,514.482) (C.520.501)
Retamad cornir2s (occumnulared Josses) 700,260 (1073610
TOTAL EQUITY 2,130,407 4.,125.027
Nemcurrent Unbilides A
Employeee’ end of service benafliz 14 1,341,850 LK a17
Murzhehs paysbles 1$ 7,2%6,7% 13,501 91¢
Asoourss pryebs und odher 1iabil tes 16 3.241,%9% 1,327,120
Leasc Lakihtcs ) - 711357
11640, 448 4.L68,010
Current Habilivks
Azcourze peyzble and other lisbizes 10 1800319 Ses A
Murshes poyobles 15 4,730,041 1,550,506
Leuse Lok Hdes 5 mas aR22m
240017 7578308
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19882, 162 2264728
TOYAL LGUITY AND LIABILITIES 6LOILIAS 63,772,045
7
Saleh Tucld Suleh ALK lmans
Chui

The emachad noves | 30 35 frem naet of thede comsolidud fimaneial staweenents,
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
Faor the yearended 31 October 2023

Cumrulafve Retairned
changes it camingy’
Shary Share Sratutory Vohwrtary Satrvalues  @oamudawed
capl sl premium reserve resenw e losses) Tosad

KD XD &D KD KD KD KD

As & | November 2022 45,053 468 - - - (3,820,380) (107,861)  4L125,0m7

Profit for the vear - - - . - 1010316 1,010 316

Other comprehenaive ks for the vear - - - - (5270) . (5.270)

Total camprebensive (Joss) income for the yeer - - - - (5270) 1,010316 1,005,046 ™

Transfer fo reserves . - 95,209 95,209 . (190,418) - N

Transfer of loss on disposal of financial assets at fair valoe @hirongh o

ofher comprehensiveloss o wtaimed camings . - - - 11,768 (11,768) N

A

As at 31 Octeber 2023 45,083,468 - 95,209 95 (38142 00,269 42130473 o

R et S R e D dnsnsnanabed R -t B e R o o .t - p

Q
(2 4

As it | November 2021 45053, 463 176642 838497 - (3623850)  (R904,403) 41 (86828 o

Profit for the year - - - - - 234262 84262 -

Other comprehensive kass far the year . - - . (196,063) - (196,063) m
L« o

Towl camprehensive (Joss) i ncome for the year . . > (196,063) 234,26 3319

Extmgui shment of sccumul ated lasses (Note 25) - (176642)  (3,384971) - 8561,613 -

Transfer of gain on disposal of financial assets at fir valoe

twrough other comprehensive income 1 retsined carning s - - - - (667) 67
As & 31 Ociober 2022 45,053 463 - - - (3.8320,580) (107.861) AL12S 27

The atached notes | %0 25 orm pant of these consohdated financial stements,



Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K. S.C P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 October 2023

3 2022
Notex .0} KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before KFAS, NLST and Zakat 1,059,951 234262
Now-cash adjustments to reconctle profit (loss) for the yeor to met cark flows;
Depreciation om propesty, plant and equipment and night-of-nse assets 1,662,555 1,784,535
Loass (gain) oa disposal of property. plant and equipment 5 (70.180)
Unrealized on revalnason of imwestment propersies 242,150 (379,543)
Realized gain on sale of mvestment property B 348.617) -
Realised loss on Sinancial assess at fair valne through profit or loss - 177
Pmﬁﬁmﬁm of allowance qemd losses, 7 (lgm
Allowance credit zat B 100,126 X
Provision for employees” end of service 14 203,238 qnﬁ?
Fimance costs on murabaha payables 8244074 338279
Fimance costs on newabaha payables (wader cost of real estate actvities) 99.99%4 99432
Fimance costs on lease lishilites 5 s44n2 138622
& ; ) 3238091 1.966.905
Clanges i working capital:
Inventores 28,801 1562
Fimancial 2ssets at fair valwe through profit or Joss - 2m
Cantract assets 925,396 815,785
Contract liabilifies . (m.lg)
Accoumts receivable and odber assets 196,625 4,745,736
Accoumsts payable and other lizbilities (1,080,067) (3.239.694)
Cash Sows from operasions 3308 846 373827
Employees' ead of service benefits paid 14 (190,005) (7143549)
Net cash flows from operating activities 318841 3,050473
INVESTING ACl'lVl?lB
Additioss to ) 91,774) (2L135)
Proceeds from pupeny and equipmest . 70300
Parchase of imvestment properties (A578.500) -
Proceeds from sale of an imvestment properties 2,700,001 -
Proceed: from sale of financial assets at fGir valne throngh other
comprehencive income 2.9 £64
Profit from investment deposits received 359,907 107257
Net cash flows from imvesting activities 111443 157.286
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from murabaha payables 0442537 41,643,164
Repayment of murababa payables “rasie%)  (37318759)
Payment of Jease liabilises 5 (736,654) {2.036.470)
Finance costs paid (650,19%6) (496,748)
Net cash fiows (used in) from financing activities (2426.349) 1701187
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S03,938 3007946
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 November e 6734756
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 OCTOBER 10 12,546,637 11,742,702
Noa-cash iramsactions excluded from the consolidaled statement of cash Hows:
Transfer to allowance for ECL on contracts and delayed penaities (Note §) . (566,165)
Transéer for allowance for ECL on contracts and delayed penalties (Note 16) - 566,165
Proceeds from sale of an imvestment properties 478935 .
Accounts receivable and other 2ssets (Amounty due from related partses) (478.935) .

The sttachad notes 1 to 25 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K. S.C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.CP. (the “Parent Company™) and its
Subsidianies (collectively, the “Group™) for the year ended 31 October 2023 were suthorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Parent Comipany’'s Board of Directars 21 December 2023.

The General Assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these consolidased financial
statements in the Anmnal General Assembly meeting of the Parent Company’s shareholders,

The Parent Company is & Kiwaiti Public Shareholding Conpany registered and mcorporated in Enwait on 15 August
1993 whose shares are listed on Boursa Euwait. The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Euwait Finance House
KS.CP. (the “Ultimate Parent Company™), a registered Islamic Bank in Enwait whose shares are listed on Bourss
Euwait.

The Parent Company is engaged in real estate activities inside and outside Kxrwait. The Parent Company’s activities
in real estate include contracting, management and maintenance of real estate. The Parent Company undertakes
contracts to construct buildings and to camry out real estate, conunercial, residential, industrial and touristic projects as
well as security of public and private real estate, and the transportation of funds and precious metals, in addition to
maintenance of mechanical and electrical spare parts and building materials. Surplus funds are invested in direct equity

mvestments, real estate and equity portfolios managed by specialist manapers. both local and foreign Al activities
are condncted in accordance with Iskamic Shania.

The registered office of the Parent Company is located at Abdullah Muobarak Street, Al-Enma’a Tower, First, Second
and Mezzanine Floors, Kuwait.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordsnce with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standsrd Board (“LASB™).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for
mvestment properties, fimancial assets at fair value throngh other comprehensive income that have been measured at
fair value.

The consolidsted financial statements have been presented in Euwaiti Dinars (“ED™), which is also the functional
carrency of the Parent Company.

Certzin of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the amounts of current year presentation.
The reclassification has no impact on results or equity of the Group.

22 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as

at 31 October 2023.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed. or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee

and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an

mvestee if, and only if. the Group has:

» Power over the mvestee (Le. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
mvestee);

» Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee; and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S_C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

22 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (contizmed)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majonity of voting rights result in control. To suppart this presmmption and
when the Group has less than 3 majority of the voting or sinmlar rights of an investee. the Group considers all relevant
facts and circomstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, inchading:

»  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes;

» Rights arising from other contractual amangements; and

»  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an mvestee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to ane ar more of the three elements of control.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, ncome and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive mcome (“OCT”) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianies to bring their

accounting policies into line with the Group’s acconnting policies. All intrs-group assets and liabilities, equity, income.
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consobidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for a5 an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assefs (including goodwill), lisbilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gam or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income  Any investment retained is recogmised at fair value.

Details of the subsidiary companies included in the consobidated financial statements as at 31 October are set out
below:

Country of Principal
Name of comparny incorporation MMmM activities
2022

ERESCO Sequrity K S.C. (Closad) Kuwait ”% 99% Security services
Al Reyada Facilities Guarding S.P.C Eowait 100% 100% Security services
Al Reyada for Security and Safety of

Equipment and toals SP.C Euwait 100% 100% Security services
Al Reyada for Secunity Consulting

Services SP.C Enwait 100% 100% Security services

Real Estate Consulting

United Real Estate Consultancy SP.C Enwait 100% 100% Services
Al-Enma’a For Security Services

Company K S.C. (Closad) Euwait 9% 99% Security Services
Enma’a Gulf Real Bstate Company

WLL. Sand:i Arabia 99% 99% Real estate activities

1% of ERESCO Seamity K S.C. (Closed), Enma’a Gulf Real Estate Company W L L. and Al-Enma’a For Security
Services K.5.C. (Closed) are held in the name of a related party as nominee on behalf of the Parent Company, who
has confinmed in writing that the Parent Company is the beneficial owner of those shares.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K S C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

23 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and imferpretations

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial staterents are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October
2023, except for the certzin standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1
November 2022. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued
but is not yet effective.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3
The amendments replace a reference to a previous version of the IASB’s Conceptual Framework with a reference to
the current version issued in March 2018 wathout sigmficantly changing its requirements.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of
potential ‘day 2° gains or losses anising for liabilities and contingent Eabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFREC 21 Lavies, if incoured separately. The exception
Tequires entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to
determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clanify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments prospectively, ie., to business
combinations ocomring after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the
date of initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no contingent
assets, liabilities or contingent Lisbilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the year,

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. any
proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of

property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when
the entity first applies the amendment (the date of mitial application).

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no sales of such
items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginming of the earfiest period
presented.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the “10 per cent’ fest for derecognifion of financial Babilifies

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity inclndes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial Liability are substantially different from the terms of the orizinal financial Hiability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, mcinding fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf There is no similar amendment proposed for IAS 39 Financial rstrionents: Recognition
and Measurement.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendment to financial lisbilities that are
modified or exchanzed on or after the beginning of the ammeal reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment (the date of mitial apphication). These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group as there were no modifications of the Group’s financial instroments during the year.

24 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issnance

of the Group’s consolidated financial statements sre disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and
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24 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In Jammary 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 wo specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

That classification 15 unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

That only if an embedded derivative in 2 convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of
a lisbility not impact its classification

yYYywyy

The amendments are effective for anmaal reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and nmst be applied
retrospectively. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statemnents,

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’. The amendments clanify the distinction between chanpes in accounting estimates and changes in
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for ammmal reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jannary 2023 and apply o
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application 1s permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Adaking Materiality
Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting
policy disclosures. The amendments zim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful
by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to
disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality
in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for ammual periods beginning on or after 1 Jannary 2023 with earlier

application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandstory guidance on the
application of the definition of material to accounting policy information, an effective date for these amendments

1S IOt DeCessary.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amended requirements.

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenne recognition

Revenue from constrction contracts is recognised when control of the zoods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be eatifled in exchange for those poods or
services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenne arangements becanse it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The Group has detenmined that the customer controls all of the work in progress for the contracts being executed. This
15 because under those confracts, the final product is made to customer’s specification and if 2 contract is ternunated
by the customer, then the Group is entitled to reimbursement of the costs incured to date, including a reasonable
LRI,
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)

Revenue recognition (contimmed)

Revemne is recogmised over time based on the mput method using cost incurred relative to the total costs to complete
the confract as the measure of progress. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenne is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incmred that are likely to be recoverable. An expected
loss on a contract is recognised inmmediately in the consolidated statement of income. The related costs are recognised
in the consolidsted statement of income when they are mcurred and are reduced by any incidental income that is not
included in contract revenne. Invoices are issued according to contractual terms and are usually payable within 30 to
90 days. Excess billings are presented as contract Habilities and uninvoiced amounts are presented as contract assets.

For cost-plus contracts, revemae is recogmsed to the extent of cost incurred on satisfying the performance oblization
plus the percentage mark up on these costs a5 a fixed fee as per the contract.

Contract reveme inclndes the mitial amount of revenme agreed in the contract and any variation in contract value,
claims and incentives to the extent that it is approved either written, oral or implied by customer business practices.

Contract costs to fulfil the performance obligation includes costs that relate directly to the contract or to an
anticipated contract that can be specifically identified and are expected to be recovered. Costs of obtaining a contract
are generally expensed as the period of amortisation is Jess than a year. Confract revennes and costs relsting to
contracts on which the work performed to the consolidated statement of financial position date is insignificant are
recognised to the extent of cost incurred, and accordingly no profit is recognised.

»  Variable consideration

If the considerstion in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to

which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The varable

consideration Is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a siznificant revenue

reversal in the amount of cummlstive revexme recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the

varisble consideration is subsequently resolved The Group at the reporting date is not entitled to any variable
iderati

. Siemifi e
The Group also receives long-term advances from its construction contracts with customers. The transaction price
for such contracts is discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing component.

Rendering of services
services provided for others. Revenue from services rendered is recognised when eamed.

properties. Real estate rental income arising from operating leases on mvestment properties is recogmsed i the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Dividend imcome 15 recogmised when the right to receive the payment is estsblished.

Jvestment deposits
Profit from mvestment deposits is recognised on an accrual basis based on the expected profit distribution rates.

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes s
substantial period of time to get ready for its mtended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other finance costs are expensed in the peniod they occur. Finance costs consist of profit and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% of profit for the year in accordance with the modified
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that income from associates and
subsidiaries and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
contribution

National Labowr Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Mimnister of Finance
Resolution No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. Cash dividends from listed companies which are
subjected to NLST are deducted from the profit for the year to deternune the taxable profit.

Zakat

Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit for the year in accordance with the requirements of the Ministry of Finance
resolution No. 582007 effective from 10 December 2007. Zakat charpe calculsted in accordance with these
requirements is charged to the consolidated statement of income

In addition, in accordance with its intenal guidelines. the Parent Company is calculsting additional Zakat at 2.577%
of the net assets that are subject to Zakat at the end of the year. Such amount is charged to volmtary reserve/
acammlated losses, and paid under the direction of the Ultimate Parent Company’s Fatwa and Sharea’a Supervisory
Board

Foreign currencies franslation

Tromsactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are imitially recarded by the Group’s entities at their respective fimctional
cwTency spot rates at the date of the transaction that first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreizn currencies are retransiated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchanpe at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreizn corency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
curency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Group companies

As at the reporting date, the assets and Liabilities of foreign operations are translated into the Parent Company’s
presentation currency at the rate of exchanpe prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of income are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the tramsactions. The exchange differences arising on
translation for consolidation are recognised directly in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreizn
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of non-fimancial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoversble amount  An asset’s recoverable amount is the igher of an asset’s or a cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is desenmined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
mflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and then its recoverable amount is
assessed as part of the cash-generating umit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-penerating umit) is considered impaired and is
wmitten down to its recoverable amount by recognising impainment loss in the consolidated statement of income.

In assessing value in use, the estimated foture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-
generating unif). In determyiming fair value less costs to sell, an sppropriate valustion model is used. These caloalations
are corroborated by available fair value indicators.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimaed)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recogmised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised mmpairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determiine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impainment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
camrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carying
amount that would have been determined net of deprecistion, had no impainment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accmmulated depreciation and any acommulated losses, if amy.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:
»  Fumiture and equipment 3to 5 years

»  Motor vehicles S years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or Joss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the asset) is
inchaded in the consolidated statemnent of income when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Expenditmwe inomred to replace a component of an tem of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is wntten off. Other subsequent
expendsture 15 capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property, plant and
equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as the expense is incurred.

The camying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impainment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
camrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount,
being the higher of their fair valne less costs o sell and their value in use.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise properties under development and developed properties that are held to eam rentsls or
for capital appreciation or both. Properties held under a lease are classified as investment properties when they are
held to eam rentals or for capitsl appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use
in production or administrative functions.

fees for legal services, comnussions and other costs to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating. The carrying amount also inchndes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment propesty at the
tme that cost is imcwred if the recopnition criteria are met; and exchades the costs of day-to-day servicng of an
investment property.

Subsequent to initial recogmition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair values of investment properties are inchaded in the
consolidated statement of income in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change muse. For a ransfer from mvestment

Pproperty to owner ocoupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair valae at the date of change
in use. If owner occupied property becomes an imvestment property, the Group accounts for such property im
accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been dispesed of or when the mvestment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no firure conomic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the investment property would result in either gains or Josses on

the retirement or disposal of the mvestment property. Any gains or losses are recognised i the consolidated statement

of income in the period of derecognition No properties held under operating lease have been classified as mvestment

propesties,

Investment in associates

hmlsmmavum&e&mhsmgu&mmg Significant influence is the power to
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the mvestee but is not control or joint control over those

policies. The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the mvestment in the associate is initially recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The camying amount of the investment is adjusted to recopmse changes in the Group's share of net
assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate i included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately. The consolidated statement of income reflects the share
ot'themswsorfopennm of the associate. Where there bas been a change recognised directly in the other
mcome of the associate, the Group recogmises its share of any changes and discloses this, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and Josses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The share of profit of associates is shown om the face of the consolidated statement of income. This is the profit
attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and minority mterests in the subsidiaries
of the associates.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group and in case of
different reporting date of associate, which are not more than three months, from that of the Group, adjustments are
made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o bring the accounting poficies in line
with those of the Group.

Afer application of the equity method, the Group deternmnes whether it is necessary 10 recogmise an impairment loss
on the Group s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impainment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carying value, and then
recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of mcome.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the cammying amount of the associate upon loss of sigmificant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Inventories

Inventory items are intended to be used partially in the Group’s contracts, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable valne. Costs are those expenses incumred in bringing each item to its present location and comdition,
determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable valne is determined based on the estimated costs to purchase or replace a similar item inclading any
expenses o be incurred m bringing such item to its present location and condition, determined on a weighted average
basis,

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the underlying asset i
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accummlated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of Jease Liabilities. The cost of nght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs mcwred, and leass payments made at or before the commencement date less
amy lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end
of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful iife and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment,
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Lease Babilities

At the commencement date of the Jzase, the Group recognises lease hiabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fized
payments) less any leass incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
Or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that tnggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the borrowing rate implicit in the lease 15 not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of finance cost and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the jease term, a change in the m-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term Jease recogmition exemption to its short-term leases of property and equipment (12.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered of low value (i.e., below KD 1.500). Leass payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on 2 straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments — Imitial recogmition and subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial Habilities are recogmised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
are directly attmbutable to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of finamcial liabilities (other than on financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on mitial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or issue financial Habilities at fair value through profit or Joss are recognised
immediately in consolidated statement of income.

Financial assety

All rezular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the fimancial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets such as contract assets, accounts receivable and other assets, mvestment deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:
»  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dases to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and yield on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss except for equity mstruments
when the Group may make an imevocable election/designation at initial recognition to recognise fair value in other

Amortised cost and qffective yield method
The effective yield method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating profit
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)

Finaneial instruments — Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continned)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

For firancial mstruments at amortised cost, the effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (inchuding all fees and points paid or recerved that form an imtegral part of the effective profit rate,
transaction costs and other prexuums or discounts) exclading expected credit losses, through the expectad life of the
debt instnament, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross camying amount of the debt instrament on mmitial
Tecognition.

The amortised cost of 3 financial asset 15 the amount at which the financial asset is measured at imitial recognition
carying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a fimancial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Profit income is recogmised using the effective yield method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Profit income is calculated by applying the effective profit rate to the gross camying amount of a fmancial asset,
except for financial assets that bave subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, profit income s recognised by applying the effective profit rate to the amortised cost of the
fimancial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired fimancial instrument improves

so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, profit income is recognised by applying the effective profit rate
to the gross camying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FVOCT

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVOCT. Designation at FVOCT is not perutted if the equity
mmgshmmwﬁnummmmbymmnamm
to which

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are imitially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing from changes in fair valne recognised
in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gam or loss will not be reclassifiad to consolidated statement of
income on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to retvined sarmings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9.

Dividends on thess investments in equity instruments are recognised in consolidated statement of income when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS 15: Revenne from comtracts with
customers, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Fair Falve Through Profit and Loss (FFTPL)
Financial assets whose business model is to acquire and sell, or whose contractual terms do not give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding,
are classified as FVTPL.

The Group classifies financial assets fair value throngh profit and loss when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instraments
that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking Held-for-
trading assets are recorded and measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value.

In addition to the above, on mitial recognition, the Group may irrevocably desigmate a fmancial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so elimimates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise anise.

Fmancial assets classified as FVTPL are subsaquently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income and dividends are
recogmised in the consolidated statement of income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to
payment has been established.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Finmmeial i —Tuitial stios amd sul (contianed)
Fimancial assess (continued)

The Group recogmises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost. No impairment loss is recogmised for equity nstruments that are classified as financial assets at FVOCL The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date.

memdmsmommmMﬁmmmhMbnhma sigmificant fimancing
component. The credit Josses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrx based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economuic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting dage,
inchiding time value of money where appropriate. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result
from all possible default events over the expected ife of a trade receivables.

Credit-impaired financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events, constituting an event of default for internal credt risk
as historical experience indicates, that have a detimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred that meet below criteria. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
mmmmumm
sipmificant financial difficulty of the issuer or the barrower;
» & breach of comtract, such as a default or past due event;
»  the Jender(s) of the bommower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s fimancial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider,
»  itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter banknupecy or other financial reorganisation; or
» the disappearance of an active market for that fimancial asset becanse of fimancial difficulties.

Write-ff of financial assets at amovtised cost
De(iowmmuﬁaﬁmﬂmnmuudmuhtmsmﬁnumnﬂrmgﬂﬁemm
is in severe fimancial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty bas
MMW«MM&MWMMMMM:&I&W

Measurement and recognition of expected credir losses

The measurement of expected credst losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given defamit (ie. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information 25 described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross camying amount at the
reporting date; for loan commutments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure inchades the amount drawn
dowm as at the reporting date..

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the origmal effective profit rate.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in consolidated statement of income for all financial assets at amortised
cost with a corresponding adjustment to their camrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the fimancial asset
expire, or it transfers the nghts to receive the contractual cash flows in a tramsaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group peither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments — Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continned)
Financial assets (continued)

-

Derecognition (continned)
From I November 2017, any cunnilative gainloss recognised in OCT in respect of equity investment securities
desiznated as at FVOCT is not recognised in consolidated statement of income on derecopmition of such securities.

Any mterest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecogmtion that is created or retained by the Group is
recogmised as a separate asset or liability.

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different If the cash flows are substantally different, then the contractual nights to cash flows from
the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and
2 new financial asset is recopmised at fair value

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial habilites include murabaha payables, accounts payable and other habilities, and contract
Habilities, and lease liabilities.

Subseguent measurement ‘
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilites depends on their classification as describad below:

Murabaha payables

M&BMMMma&nﬂHMMBmmmm
amngements. Murabaha payables are stated at the contractual amount payable, Jess deferred profit payable. Profit
mpwmammmmgmdummmmmm

Accounts payable and other liakilites
Liabdlities are recogmised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the

supplier or not.

D ¥
A financial hiability is derecognised when the obligation under the hiability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the

temms of an existing Habdlity are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmition

of the original liability and the recognition of a new Lability, and the difference in the respective camying amounts is
recognised m the consolidated statement of income.

Fmancal assets and fimancial Habilities are offset, and the net amount reparted in the consolidated statement of
financial position if and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the recogmised amounts and
there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the Labilities smmitaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or hability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market mmst be accessible to by the Group.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fimancial instroment= — Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continuwed)

Fair valus measurement (continned)
The fair value of an asset or a iabdlity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
‘would use the asset in its highest and best use.

available to measure fair value, macimizing the use of relevant observable inputs and mimimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sipnificant

to the fair value measurement as a whale:

» Levell Quotad (umadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level2 Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

»  Level3 Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the far value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurming basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have ocoumred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measursment as a whole) at the end of each reporting

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, charactenistics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explaimed
above.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benmefits to its employees in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law. The
entitiement to these benefits is based upon the employees” fimal salary and lemgth of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees” contracts. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment This hability, which is unfunded,
Tepresents the amount payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social Secunty
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group's obligations are limited to these contributions,
‘wiich are expensed when due.

Proviii
Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present oblization (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodymg economic benefits will be required to settle the oblization and
a reliable estimate of the oblization amount can be made.

Fiduciary asets
Assets and related deposits held in tast or in 2 fiducary capacity are not treated as assets or habilities of the Group
and accordngly are not inclnded in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Consi .
Contingent assets are not recognised i the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amua&mﬁkmd&&wham@u&nmm«m
(business segment), or it providing products and services within a particular economsc emvironment (peograplhic
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other ssgments.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange of goods or services transferred to the costomer. If the Group
pexforms by transferming goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before the payment
1s due, a contract asset is recogmised for the eamed consideration that is conditional

‘. bt
A contract liability &5 the obligation to transfer goods or services 10 a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 2 customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the
payment is due (whichever is earfier) Comtract Eabilities are recogmised as reverme when the Group performs under
the contract.

256 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's comsolidated financial statements requires mamagement to make judgments,
mmmm&mmmmﬁmmmmm and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a matenal adjstment to the camying amount of the asset or

liability affected in fuure periods.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following significant
mmmummeﬁm@umwnuwm

Classification of real estate properties
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate property whether it should be classified a5 trading or Imvestment

property.

The Group classifies property a5 an investment property if it is acquired, developed or is in the process of
development to principally generate rental income ar for capital appreciation, or for undetermuned firtare nse.

m&wpmmﬁsmamgmfnmmnywmcda&pdﬁshmﬂ!m
course of business, if

ion of financial mstrumants
Management decides on acquisition of a financial instrument whether it shonld be dlassified as “at fair value throngh
profit or loss™ or “at fair value through other comprehensive income™.

Classification of financial instruments as “at fair value through profit or loss™ depends on how management
monitors the performance of fhese financial instruments. When they bave readily available reliable fair values and
the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management accounts, they are classified as
“at fair value throuzh profit or loss™.

The Group classifies all other financial instruments as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
thamgnﬁcnnﬁufmgammﬂujmmthemmofmmmmm
fhe pext financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estnsates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due o market changes or arcumstances ansing beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocowr.
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26 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued}

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Valuation qf investment properties
The fair value of developed imvestment properties is detenmined based on valuation performed anmmally by
independent professional real estate valuation experts using recognised valuation techniques. Developed investment

properties are valued using the income capitalisation approach; or, the market approach based on recent transactions
for properties with characteristics and location similar to those of the Group’s properties.

The far value of nvestment properties under development is also determuned based on valustion performed
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Conmmittee, except if such values cammot be reliably
determined.

Recogmtion of construction confract revenue

Recognised amounts of construction contract revennes and relsted receivables reflect manapgement’s best estimate
of each contract’s outcome and stage of completion This includes the assessment of the profitability of on-going
construction contracts and the order backlog. For more complex contracts in particudar, costs to complete and
contract profitability are subject to significant estimation uncertainty.

Prafit on uncomplesed contracts

Profit on uncompleted contracts s only recognised when the contract reaches a point where the ultimate profit can
be estimated with reasonable certainty. This requires the Group’s management to determiine the level at wiich
reasonshle estimstes can be reached

Accrmulated costs and estimated eqnings on wncompleted contracts

Revenne from fixed price construction contracts is measured by reference to the percentage of actual costs incurred
to date to the estimated total costs for each confract applied to the estimated contract revenue, and reduced by the
proportion of revemme previously recognised. This requires the Group to use judgment in the estimation of the total
cost expected to complete each project.

Valuation qf unquoted equity investments

Valuation of unguoted equity imvestments is normally based on one of the following:

» recent arm’s length market transactions;

»  current fair value of another instroment that is substantially the same;

» the expected cash flows discounted at curent rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics; or

»  Other valuation models.

»  Net assets value “NAV" when the underlying assets are measured in fair value.

s

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cast

The allowsnce for expected credit losses for financial assets disclosed in Note 7 and Note 8 are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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3 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamungs per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by the weighted average mumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
munber of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares. As at 31 October, the Parent Company had no outstanding dilutive potential shares.

2023 2022
Profit for the year (KD) 1,010316 234262
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 450,534 680 450,534,680
Basic and diluted earnings per share 224 fis 052 fils
= _ = == _] | = == =]
4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2023 2022
KD kD
As at 1 November 40901 816 40,522,273
Additions* 2378 500
Disposals®* 2,830319) -
Unrealised (loss) gain on revaluation (242 150) 379,543
As at 31 October 40707847 40901216
ey T ———————

*During the year ended 31 October 2023, the Parent Company acquired an investment propesty from the Ultimate Parent
Company for a total consideration of KD 2,878, 500. Based on the contractual tenms of purchase agreement, the total
consideration was paid in cash durng the year.

**During the year ended 31 October 2023, the Parent Company sold an mvestment property and part of the lands of
Bahrsin to 3 non-related party for a total consideration of KD 3.178,936. As a result, the Group realised a gain on sale
of KD 348,617 in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2023.

As at 31 October, investment properties are categonsed mto:

2023 2022

XD kD
Developed properties 35165000 34,851,000
Lands 5542 847 6,050,816
407073847 40901816
et —————————

As at 31 October, investment properties are geographically located as follows:
2023 2022
XD KD

Euwait 35,165,000 34,851,000
Gulf Council Countries 5,542 847 6,050.816
40707847 40,901,816
Eere—
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< INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair valne of mvestment properties bas been detenmined based on valuation performed by two ndependent
professional real estate valuation experts who are specialised in valuing sach type of properties. Both valuers have
used the following methods:

Dudwdmhwbawhduﬁghmthmmh
Land have been valued using the market approach based on recent transactions for propesties with charactenistics
ndkxmmihbﬁmot‘m&mp S properties.
Description of the above vakuation methods is provided in detail in (Note 23).
For valuation purpose, the Group has selected the lower of those two valuations (2022: the lower of two vahmations).
Based on those valuations, the Group has recognised an unrealised loss of KD 242,150 (2022: unrealised zain of KD
379,543) in the consolidaed statement of income

The significant assumptions made relating to vahmtion of developed properties are set out below:

2023 2022
Income capitelization approach (Tevel 3)
Total area available for rent (sqm) 15154 15,654
Average monthly rent per sqm (ED) 11 11
Average yield rate (%) 59% 59%
Market comparison approach (level 2)
Price per sqm (KD) 150 to 615 141 to 615

As at 31 October 2023, mvestment properties with a carying value of KD 15,293,000, ED 4,720,000 and ED
3,793,000, (2022: KD 17,149,000 and KD 4,717,000 and ED 7,923,000) are pledged as a security against letters of
guarantee and murabaha payables to the Ultimate Parent Company, other related parties and local financial
institations, respectively (Note 15).

The table below presents the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the significant assumptions underlying the
valuation of the investment properties:

Changes in
significant Sensitivity of the input to fair value
assumplions KD
Average monthly rent (per sqm) ED10 Am@m 1%) increase in the average mouthly
per sqm would increase the fair value by KD
347.30(2022:@348.510)
Average yield rate 4%w8% A 1% (2022: 1%) increase in the average yield mate
KDMMSMOSQ) the fair value by KD 343 851 (2022:

5 LEASES
Set out below are the camying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
Right-gf-use Lease
abilits

KD D
Asat ] November 2022 2549303 1393 629
Depreciation expense
Finance costs
Payments of lease Gabilities

As at 31 October 2023
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At 31 October 2023
5 LEASES (continued)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease Liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

As at 1 November 2021
Depreciation expense
Finance costs
Payments of lease lisbilities

As at 31 October 2022

assets liabilities
KD XD
4228107 3,201477
(1,678,804) -
= 138,622
= (2,036,470)

2549303

1,393,629

The Group discounted its lease payments using an incremental borrowing rate of 5% (2022: 5%) per anmum.
Set out below, are the amounts recognised in consolidated statemnent of income related to leases:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (recorded under
cost of services rendered)
Finance costs

As at 31 October

6 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Financial assets at fair valne through other comprehensive mcome (FVOCT)
Foreign unquoted equity securities

Fair value hierarchy disclosures are provided in (Note 23).
7 CONTRACT ASSETS'CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Accummlated costs and estimated eamings on contracts in progress
Progress billings on contracts in progress

Less: allowsnce for expected credit losses
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2023 2022
KD kD
1,587 367 1,678,804
54422 138,622
1,641,789 1,817,426
2023 2022
KD kD
% 3835
340,380 369,190
340330 373,025
2023 2022
ED kD
26,490,147 88,628,777
(26356,982)  (87,570,216)
133165 1,058,561
(9,930) (104,231)
123185 954330
T — s S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

7 CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES (contimmued)

Contract assets/contract lishilities are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD

Contract assets, net 123185 954,330

‘ “m.‘! h‘ﬁlm‘ 3 - -
123185 954330

Retention receivables or payables relating to contracts in progress are disclosed in (Note 8) and (Note 16),
respectively. The movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of contract assets is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD

At 1 November 104,231 206,756

Reversal of allowance for ECL during the year 94,251) (102,525)

At 31 October 9,980 104,231

simplified approach set out in IFRS 9:

2023 2022
Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
not credit not credit
impaired Total impaired Total
KD KD KD XD
31 October
Expected credit loss rate T749%* 0.85%*
Estimated total gross camying amount 133165 133,165 1,058,561 1,058,561
Lifetime ECL (9,930) (9,980) {104.231) (104,231)
As at 31 October 123185 954330
R~ = =

* represents average expected credit loss rate.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

81 Retention receivables

Retention receivables include certain balances of KD 3,345,077 (2022: KD 3,292 631) related to projects that have
been already delivered to customers, for which final payment cemtificates amounting to KD 245,703 (2022: KD
1,184,756) are yet to be billed pending the final agreement with the subcontractors.

82 Trade receivables and amounts due from contract owners
As at 31 October, the apeing analysis of trade receivables and amomnts due from contract owners is as follows:

Not past due Past due
Lass than Jtob More than 6
3 months maoviths months Total
KD KD KD ED
2023
Total gross cammying amount at
390,767 126 452 5408 A35 5925654
Expected credit loss (52,669) (46,209) (3377,124) (3476,002)
Expected credit loss rate 13% 37% 2% 9%
2022
Total gross camying amount at
defanlt 066,939 44519 5,174 851 6,186,309
Expected credit loss (536,955) (33,750) (2,557,172) (3,127.877)
Expected credit loss rate 56% 76% 49% 51%

Trade receivables and receivables from contract owners are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 1o
90 days.

Based on prior experience, an assessment of the cmrent economic environment and a review of the financial
circumstances of individual customers, the Group’s management believes that no further provision s required m
respect of trade recetvables and amounts due from contract owners.

Note 21.1 inchades qualitative disclosures relating to the credit risk and analysis relating to Group's trade receivables
and amounts due from contract owners.

It is not the practice of the Group to obtain collaterals over trade receivables and amounts due from contract owners.

83 Amounts due from related parties
Terms and conditions relating to related party receivables are provided m (Note 18).

84 Subcontractor debit balances

During the prior years, the Parent Company filed legal cases agamst foreign subcontractors on the ground of the non-
fulfillment of the subcontracts’ contractual obligations relating to certain construction contracts undertaken by the
Parent Company, for which, the court is yet to pronounce its verdict.

Based on the Parent Company's external legal counsels opimion, there is a sigmificant uncentainty involved in the
determination of the expected owscome of these legal cases. As a result, the management of the Group had fully
imipaired the outstanding balance due from the subcontractors amounting to KD 7,435,105 (2022: KD 7,435,105).

85 Advances to subcontractors
Advances to subcontractor are secured by letters of guarantee with a total value of KD 13,000 (2022: KD 642.496)
‘which are held as collateral.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

9 INVESTMENT DEPOSITS

Investment deposits of KD 8,155,774 (2022: KD 9,704,162) are placed with local Islamic banks and are denominated
i Euwziti Dinars. Investment deposits have an original maturity of three months or less, and are sutomatically
renewsble for a similar periods.

Investment deposits amounting to KD 5,605,774 (2022: KD 5,704,162) are placed with the Ultimate Parent Company
(Note 18). The average rate of profit on these deposits during the year ended 31 October 2023 was 3.67% (2022:
1.11%0) per anmum.

The Group had pledged mvestment deposits with a camrying value of ED 5,532,666 (2022: KD 5.453,616) to the
Ultimate Parent Company against Murabaha payables to fulfil collateral requirements (Note 15).

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents inchaded in the consolidated statement of cash flows are reconciled to the relsted items in
the consolidated staternent of financial position as follows:

2023 2022

KD KD
Ivestment deposits (Note 9) 8,155,774 9,704,162
Bank balances and cash 4,390 363 2,038,540
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 October 12,546 637 11,742,702

Bank balances and cash amounting to KD 233,851 and KD 82,153 (2022: KD 839,001 and KD 7.218) are held with
the Ultimate Parent Company and other related parties (Note 18).

The Group holds certain investment deposits and bank balances with a related party entity in its capacity as fiduciary
assets a5 disclosed in Note 19. These assets are not inchaded in the consolidated statement financial position.

11  SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and fully paid
2023 2022
ED KD
450,534,680 shares of 100 fils each (fully paid in cash) 45,053 A63 45,053,468

12 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, a minimeam of
1074 of the profit for the year before contributions to EFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’ remumeration shall
be transferred to statutory reserve. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to discontinue
such transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve may only be used to offset losses
or enable the payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when profit is not sufficient for the
payment of such dividend due to sbsence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve shall be
refunded when the profits in the following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital.

During the year, 10% of the profit for the year, after offsetting accumulsted losses brought forward has been to statuary
TESErve.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S_.C P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

13 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, 3 maximam of 10% of the profit for the year before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of
Directors’ remmneration is reguired to be transferred to the volumtary reserve. Such ammmal transfers may be
discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders’ general assembly upon a recommendation by the Board of Directors.
There are no restrictions on the distribution of this reserve.

During the year, 10% of the profit for the year, after offsetting acommnlated losses brought forward has been to
voluntary reserve.

14 EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The movement of the provision for employees’ end of service benefits recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 October is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
As at 1 November 1,128 617 1,720,925
Charpe for the year 203238 194814
Reversal during the year (included in “other income”) - (72,768)
Payments made during the year (190,005) (714.359)
As at 31 October 1,141 350 1,128617
CaredId=a>eeld _—
15 MURABAHA PAYABLES
2023 2022
iD KD
Gross amount 12133541 13,141,620
Less: deferred profit (146,704) (89.196)
11,986 837 13052424

Murasbaha payables represent amounts paysble on 3 deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under Islamic
financing arrangements. Murabahas payables carry profit at a rate ranging from 5.25% to 6.50%6 (2022: 3.25% 10 5.25%)
Per anuum. '

As at 31 October 2023, mursbeha payables with carrying values of KD 4,803 201, KD 2,879,245 and KD 4,304,301

(2022: KD 5,048,288, KD 3,083,687 and KD 4,920,449) were granted by the Ultimate Parent Company, related local
financial instirution and other Jocal financial institutions, respectively (Note 18).

As at 31 October 2023, murabaha payables are secured by certain pledged investment deposits, to the Ultimate
Parent Company, with a carrying valee of KD 5,532,666 (2022: KD 5,453,616) (Note 9). In addition, nurabaha
payables are secured, to the Ultimate Parent Company, other related parties and local financial institutions by certain
investment properties with a carrying vale of KD 15,293,000, KD 4,720,000 and KD 3,793,000, respectively
(2022: KD 17,149,000, ED 4.717,000 and KD 7,923 000, respectively) (INote 4).
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

16 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2023 2022

KD KD
Trade payables* 852,623 1,524,920
Advance payment received from contract owners 148 846 157,794
Deferred income 30,678 37.224
Retentions payable 1351428 1,550,601
Dividend payable 57,295 59.431
Other habilities 1,678 809 1,783,139
Provision for legal claims 1922 439 1959439
6,042118 7072548
TSRO —

*Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
The matunty analysis of accounts paysbles and other Lisbilities as at 31 October is as follows:

2023 2022

KD KD
Current 2,800,319 5.745428
Non-curent 3241799 1,327,120

Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,042118 7072548

17  SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units, based on their products and services, in order
to mansge its various lines of business. For segment reporting, the Group has five reportable operating segments as
follows:

Construction prgjects:  Undertaking contracts to construct buildings.

Real estate: Managing its own properties and renting properties for others.
Ivestments: Participating and investing in shares of local and foreign companies and real estate
properties.

No operating segments have been azgregated to form the above reportable operating sepments.

Management of the Parent Company momitors the operating results of its business units separately for making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit
or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Reported segment profit or loss is based on infernal manapement reporting information that is repolarly reviewed

by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance,
and is reconciled to the Groups profit or loss.

During the years ended 31 October 2023 and 31 October 2022 there were no significant inter-segment transactions,

SeEIELt
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.CP. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

17 SEGMENT INFORMA TION (confinued)
Segment mformasion as of and for e year ended 3] October isas follows:

Services Construction
rendered Real estate projects Invesments Unallocated Towl
KD KD KD KD KD KD
31 Ocwober 2023
Scgment revenues 6,238 413 1,982,052 13724 330,773 - 8564 962 %
Segment operating costs (4316,777) (717,997) (663,826) - . (5,698 600) ()
Reversal of (allowance for) expected credit 1osses, nat 66,454 (93,789 224733 - (297,524) (100, 126) ..2.\
-
Scgmont results 1,988, (90 L 170,266 (42539) 330,773 (297,524) 2,766,236 (w)
—_— —_— — — = —_— e p
Other income 106,316 106,316 o
Fmance costs on mursbaha payables (52404) (324074) =
Finence costs on Jease liabilitics (442)  (54422) 9
Other opersting expenses (1,234105) (1,234 105) c
KFAS,NLST and Zakat (49,635) (49,635) nm

Profit for the year 1,010,316
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These represent transactions with major shareholders. associates, directors and executive officers of the Group, close
members of their families and companies of which they are principal owners or over which they are able to exercise
coutrol or significant influence entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business. Pricing policies and terms
of these transactions are approved by the Parent Company s Board of Directors.

Transactions and balances with related parties included in the consolidsted financial statements are as follows:

Other Ultimate
related Parent Total Total
parties** Company 2023 2022
KD KD KD ED
Cornsolidated statement of mcome
Revenue from services rendered* - 1355157 1355157 1,942 047
Revenne from real estate activities - 8,000 8,000 -
Profit on mvestment deposits - 205,700 205,700 82,607
Cost of real estate activities 6,768 99004 106,762 6,005
Cost of services rendered 33581 9928 43509 28408
Cost of construction contracts 451 93,040 93491 42045
General and administrative expenses 13 419 - 13419 15,358
Finance costs on murabaha payables 168,591 131631 300,222 181,755

* Reverme from services rendered inclndes an amount of KD 118,690 (2022: ED 171,637) which were eamed from
trust and fiduciary activities rendered to the Ultimate Parent Comipany (Note 19).

4* Other related parties incinde affiliates of the Ultimate Parent Companry.

During the year ended 31 October 2023, the Parent Company acquired an investment property from the Ultimate Parent
Company for a total consideration of KD 2,878 500 (Note 4).

Other Ultimate

related Parent Total Total

parties Company 2023 2022

KD KD KD KD

Amounts due from related parties, net (Note 8) 478935 100,240 579175 124531
Investment deposits (Note 9) - 56057714 5605774 5,704,162
Bank balances and cash (Note 10) 82153 233 851 316,004 846219
Murabaha payables (Note 15) 2879 245 4803291 7682536 8,131,975
Accomnts payable and other Liabilities 11,653 8,000 19653 11,677

Amounts due from related parties are interest free and are receivable on demand

2023 2022
KD KD
Key management COmMpensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits 350,690 377,193
Employees’ end of service benefits 38,677 36,692

389 367 413,885

The Group holds certzin investment deposits and bank balances m its capacity as fiduciary assets with a related party
entity as disclosed in Note 19.
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Al Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.CP. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

19 FIDUCIARY ASSETS

The Group manages rented real estate portfolios on behalf of the Ultimate Parent Company and other third parties.
The Group collects rental income and deposits it in fiduciary bank accounts.

The aggrezate value of investment deposits and bank balances held in a trust or fiduciary capacity by the Group at 31
anhsm amounted to KD Nil and KD 3,041,165, respectively (2022: KD2.SO0.0NMKD 3929480
out of which, mvestment deposits and bank balances related to the Ultimate Parent Company amounting

to KD Nil and ED 2,959 012, respectively (2022: KD 2,500,000 and KD 3,912 480 respectively).

Revenne from services rendered includes ED 714,227 (2022: ED 430,281) arising from trust and fiduciary activities,
out of which, ED 118,690 (2022: KD 171,637) has been eamed from services rendered to the Ultimate Parent

Companry (Note 18).
20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Asat31 October 2023, the Group has contingent habilities representing letters of guarantee and lesters of credit
issued in the ordinary courss of business amounting to KD 16,034,188 (2022: KD 16,947 094). from which, itis
anticipated that no materal abality will arise.

(b) Letter of guarantess amounting to KD 10,065,688 (2022 KD 11,246 335) related to delayed projects amounting to
KD 26,602,684 (2022: ED 81 339.813) for which the Parent Company did not have approved extension on the
Project completion date.

{c) The Parent Company bas lezal cases filed by subcoatractors and the management of the Parent Company does not
expect probable obligation from those lezal cases (Note 24).

21  FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk is inherent in the Group's activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitonng, subject to nsk limits and other comtrols. This process of nisk mamazement 15 critical to the Group's
contimuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to its
responsibilities,

being subdivided into profit rate risk, foreign carmency risk and equity price sk, No changes were made in the risk
management objectives and pobicies during the years ended 31 October 2023 and 31 October 2022 The

of the Parent Company reviews and agrees policies for managzing each of these risks wiich are summarised below:

211 Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to financial
loss. The Group has policies and procedures in place to lmit the amount of credit exposure to any counter party and
to momitor the collection of receivables on an ongoing basis. The Group kmits its credit risk with regard to bank
‘balances and mmvestment deposits by only dealing with reputable banks and financial mstitutions. In addition, receivable

li&xsmmdmmmmMMEmnMMMBMmNumﬂm

Maxinmum exposure io credi risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk from bank balances and accounts recervable anses from default of the counterparty.
Where financial instruments are recarded at fair vahe, it represents the current maximum credit risk exposure but not
the maximmam risk exposure that conld arise in the future as a result of changes in values. The Group’s gross maximum
exposure to credit risk 15 described below:

2023 2022

KD ED
Accounts receivable and other assets (excinding prepayments and advances) 18544488 18274031
Contract assats 133165 1,058,561
Investment deposits 8155774 9,704,162
Bank balances (exclnding cash in hand) 4,390 863 2,038,540

31224290 31075294
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

212 Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty i raising fumds to meet commitments associated with

financial instruments. The risk is managed by the Group by ensuring bank facilities are avaifable and by monitoring
on a regular basis that sufficient funds are available to meet fture commuitments.

The Group limits its liquidity risk by ensuring adequate credit facilities are available. The Group terms of service
Tequire amounts to be paid within 60 days of the date of renden
ng of service. Trade payables are normally setfled within 60 days of the date of purchase.

The following table summarises the maturities of the Group's undiscounted financial abilities as at 31 October, basad
on contractual payment dates and current market profit rates:

Less than Jwé 6t012 Over
3 months months months one year Total
XD XD XD XD KD
2023
M!nbdnplylb]es —— 230 A26 216 493 4,069 B45 7554842 12071606
Accounts payable and other liabilities* 268 695 280,794 2111306 3241799 5862594
Lease liabilities - - 732,000 - 732,000
Total financial liabilities 499121 457287 6913151 10796641 18666200
Contingent liabilities 1851377 2713884 1979204 9278723 15823188
Less than Jwb 6wlil Ovar
3 months months months one year Total
D XD KD XD KD
2022 .
Murabaha payables 347,768 347,098 800357 11556397 13141620
Accounts payable and other labilities* 61878 221034 5267498 1327120 6877530
Lease liabilities 1,200 1,200 734,400 732000 1468800
Total financial liabilities 410,846 560332 6802255 13615517 21487950
Contingent liabilities 10854878 2998112 514125 2579980 16947095

* Exciuding deferred income and advance payments ffom contract owners.

213 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctaate as a result of changes in market variables
nhnpo&mmmhngnmuﬂmm&mmmmmdwmm
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all financial instruments traded in the market.

21.3.1 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk anises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values
of financial instruments. The Group is not exposed to significant profit rate nisk since its bormowings are from Islamic
financial mstitations at fixed profit rates.

21.3.2 Foreign currancy risk

Foreizgn currency risk is the nisk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes i foreign
exchange rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s results and other comprehensive income (due to

changes in the fair value of financial assets and kabilities) to a 5% possible change in the exchange mtes, with all other
vanables held constant:
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C_P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
213 Market risk (contimeed)

21.3.2 Foreign cxrrency risk (continned)
on resuits for the
2023 2022
KD KD
Crrancy

Bahraini Dinar 23947 -

Management believes that there is a limited risk of significant losses due to exchange rate flactuations and consequently
the Group does not hedge foreizn curency exposure.

22  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Thepmnyotgxﬁwof&e(hm&cmﬂmanmm&nnmhu&ywﬂmBmm
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital stocture and adjusts it in light of changes in business conditions. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 October 2023 and 31 October 2022. Capital
comprises share capital, statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, cumulative changes in fair values reserve, and mtined
sarmings and 15 measured at KD 42,130,073 as at 31 October 2023 (2022: KD 41,125,027).

23  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Liability in an orderly wansaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for deternuining and disclosing the fair values of assets recorded at fair

value by vahation techmique:

Level I:  Quoted (umadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2:  Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

Level3:  Valution techmiques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

F.h&amwummam«mmnﬁmwmauwmmnn

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD kD KD
2023
Investment properties - 5542847 35165000 40,707 847
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 349,380 340,380
- 5542847 35,505,380 41,048227
e =i — 1 b iai— e
2022
Investment properties - 6,050,816 34,851,000 40901816
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 373,025 373,025
- 6,050,816 35224025 41274841

Annual Report2023




Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianies
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

p2} FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Fair value kierarchy (continmed)
There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the years ended 31 October 2023 and 31 October
2022,

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of level 3 assets which are recorded
at fair valve:

Net losses
Net gain recordad ir the
recordedinthe  comsolideted

At the comsodidated stalemsent of  Net purchases,
begptmming o statement o’ comprolensive  Oumgfirs, sales At the end
the yeor Income Income and setrlements  of the year
KD KD XD KD KD

31 October M13
Tmvostmant propartios 34851000 (157,500) - 471500 35,165,000
Financial assets ot fxir valoe
w&.w
income 3nms - (5,2740) 27,378) 340,380

3522425 (157,500) (5,370) 444,125 35505350

Net losses
Net loss recorded in the Nt
recorded in the comsolidated purchases,
At the consolidated atatement of tramfers,
beginning of statement of comprehensive sales amd At the end
the year inoome imoome scttiements of the year
£D KD KD D KD

31 October 2022
Inusstmsont propertios 34,648,000 203,000 - - 34,851,000
Financial assats af fair value
terongk othar ceaprabazie
imcoms 569,952 - (196,063) (364) 373,025

35217952 203,000 (196,063) (864) 35,224,025

Deseription of sigmificant unobservable inputs to valuation of Snancial aszets:

Unquoted equity securities classified as financial assets at fair vahue through other comprehensive income are valued
using certain nputs and assumptions to determine the fair value based on the average market muitiples method,
price to book value of comparable companies, and discount for Jack markesability and control.

Description of valuation methods nsed in the fxir valuation of investment properties:

»  Properties are valued using the income capitalisation approach. Income capitalisation approach is based on
capitalisation of the discounted annmal cash flows from the property, which is cakoulated by discounting rental
income generated anmually by the property, using the current market discount rate.

» Lands are valued wsing the market approach. Market approach is based on a comparison of active market
prices for simdlar properties and recent arm s length market transactions, adjusted for difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific property.

24 LEGAL CASES

2) Dunng the year ended 31 October 2018, the Parent Compamy filad a legal case against a contract owner
claiming the recovery of previously incusred delay penalties amounting to KD 3.851,136. On 13 December
2020, the Court of First Instance has issued a verdict wiich entitled the Parent Company to recover the final
payment of the contract amounting to KD 163,159. This ruling was appealed by both sides of the legal case,
and om 30 May 2022, the appeal was rejected, and the legal case was dismissed by the court for premature
filing The mamagement of the Group filed an appeal agamst the ruling at the Court of Cassation. On 8
Nowember 2023, the legal case was dismissed from the court following an out-of-conrt settlement between the
disputed parties. Based on which, the contract owner agreed o0 release the withbeld bank guarantees of KD

7,702,272, and om 14 December 2023, the contract owner initiated the procedures to release the guarantees.
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

24 LEGAL CASES (contimued)
b) Durmng the prior years, a subcontractor filed a legal case agaist the Parent Company claiming recovery of

costs incured on one of the projects. On 26 January 2021, the Court of first instance has issued an imitial
verdict awarding the subcontractor an amount of KD 6,588.572. The Parent Company filed an appeal azaimst
the ruling at the Court of Appeal. and on 20 February 2022, the Coust of appeal’s verdict was issnad

the first ruling. The Group appealed agamst the naling at the Court of Cassation. On 12 June 2022, the Court
of Cassation approved the Group s request to suspend the enforcement of the abovementioned verdict awaiting
the outcome of the final ruling.

The Parent Company has also filed another case azainst the same subcontractor. On 17 May 2022, the Court of
farst instance issued an mitial verdict oblizating the subcontmctor to pay the Parent Company an amount of KD
2,850,286 and the related legal charpes. The subcontractor appealed against this ruling, and on 20 November
2022, the court of appeals verdict was issued supporting the first nling due to enrichument without reason. On
28 December 2022 the subcoatractor filed an appeal at the Court of Cassation, however, the hearing session
have been set until the date of approval of this consolidated financial statements.

Management and the legal counsel believe that there is uncertainty around the case and the ultimate outcome
of the case by the Court of Cassation cannot be determined presently. Howewver, mamagement believes they
have sufficient provisions against the legal cases on account of the related claim with the same subcomtractor

During the year ended 31 October 2019, The Parent Company filed a regal case agamst on2 of the contractors
seeking to refund the Liquadated performance guarantee of ED 900,000 and the advance payment amounting
to KD 441,402. On 6 February 2022, the Court of first instance has issned a verdict which entitled the Parent
Company to remmburse an amount of KD 483,166 in addition to the hquidated guarantees. The decision was
appealed by the main contractor and the Parent Company at the Court of Appeal. The Court of Appeal’s verdict
was issued 22 January 2023 adjusted the awarded amount by the Count of first instance to be ED 85,176 and
declined the Parent Company s right to claim the guarantees. The Parent Company filed an appeal against the
ruling in the Court of Cassation, which was transferred to the Cassation Prosecution for final opimon. As a
result, the Parent Company recorded an additional allowance for expected credit losses of KD 342 409 against
the outstanding balance due from the contractor. However, no Court of Cassation date have been set until the
date of issuance of this consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 October 2019, a subcontractor filed a Jegal case against the Parent Company seeking
fmal settlement of the subcontract’s balance. On 22 March 2021, the Court of first imstance has issned a verdict
mandating the Parent Company to settle an amount of KD 183,855. On 22 Febraary 2023, the Court of Appeals
verdict adjusted the first verdict, mandating the Parent Company to pay an amount of KD 176,992 plus 7%
interest starting from 14 Jamuary 2019. On 17 May 2023, the Court of Appeals has ordered the coatinuation of
the execution of the verdict, and it was fully executed during the year in which the Parent Company has fully
settled the demanded verdict amount. As a result, the Parent Company recorded a loss of KD 161,397 in the
consolidated statement of income, and filed an appeal in the Court of Cassation before the consultation room
which has not been schaduled yet until the approval date of this consolidated financial statements.

25  ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMEBLY MEETING (AGM)

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company bas proposed a board remmumeration to the independent members of the
Board of Directors amounting to KD 15,000 for the year ended 31 October 2023 (2022: KD 9,000). This proposal &5
subject to the approval of the shareholders” at the anmal general assembly meeting.

The Armmual General Assembly Meeting (“AGM™) of the Parent Company’s shareholders which was held on 12
March 2023 approved:

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October 2022.

The distribution of Board of directors’ remmeration of KD 9,000 to the independent member of the Board of
The Board of Directors” recommendation not to distribute dividends for the year ended 31 October 2022

The authorization of the Board of Directors to trade in the Parent Company s shares to the extent of 109 of its
share capital in accordance with guidelines of the law No.7 of 2010 and its exacutive regulations and subsaquent
amendments,
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Al-Enma’a Real Estate Company K.S.CP. and its Subsidianies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 October 2023

25  ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETING (AGM)

The Ammal General Assembly Meeting (“AGM™) of the Parent Comipany’s shareholders was held on 20 March
2022 and approved:

» The consolidated finsncial statements for the year ended 31 October 2021.

» The distribution of Board of directors’ renumeration of KD 7,375 to the independent member of the Board of
Directors.

» The Board of Directors’ reconumendation not to distibute dividends for the year ended 31 October 2021.

» The extinguishment of acconmlsted losses balance of KD 8,561,613 against KD 176,642 of the share premium
and KD 8384 971 of the statutory reserve; and

» The suthorisation of the Board of Directors to trade in the Parent Company”s shared to the extent of 10% ofits
share capital in accordance with guidelines of the law No.7 of 2010 and its executive regulations and subsequent
amendments,
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AL-ENMAA’'REAL ESTATE COMPANY
GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 310CTOBER 2023

Al-Enmaa’ Real Estate Company follows an integrated governance structure to promote progress
and sustainability, as well as to safeguard the rights of shareholders and maintain a balance among
all parties involved. To this end, Al-Enmaa has established sound corporate governance practices
in accordance with the guidelines set by the Capital Markets Authority. This has resultedin a robust
system of management that aims to attain the company’s goals, which benefit both shareholders,
while ensuring transparency and accountability. The goal of implementing governance principles
is to boost investor confidence in the company's ability to effectively handle challenges, manage
risks, and maintain integrity.

The governance framework is based on a set of requirements and considerations. which include
the following governance pillars:

Pillar 1: Construct a Bal |B T it
11Board C iti

The Board of Directors’ structure is proportionate with the size and nature of the company's activities, as well
as the roles and responsibilities entrusted to it. Other elements that are considered when composing the
board are diversity of qualifications, professional experiences, specialized skills, and knowledge of laws and
regulations related to the responsibilities and duties of such Board of Directors. Thus, this guarantees that
the board provides the company with a balance of skills, allowing it to operate in an efficient manner. The
board has all the necessary power and specializations to manage the company, and it is responsible for the
company’s business even if it has formed specialized committees or authorized individuals or entities to
carry out some of its business.

The Board is composed of (7) non-executive members, including two independent constituting the
independent members' proportion requirements.

The members were elected at the general assembly meeting of the company’s shareholders held on
12/03/2023. The term of membership in the Board of Directors is three years, and the members whose term
expired may be re-elected.
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12 Mectings of ihe Baard of Dieetara:

The Board of Directors holds at least (6) meelings over the year, including at least one quarterly meeting, at the
invitation of the Chairman of the Board or his representative. The Board of Directors can also hold meefings
based on the request of at least two members, and the Board meeting is not considered valid unless attended
by most of the members, and attendance by proxy is not permitted. It is permissible to conduct Board meetings
using modern means of communication.

During the year ended 31 October 2023, the Board of Directors held (12) meetings, the following table shows the
number of Board meetings that each member attended and illustrates to which extent each member is
obviously committed to attending Board meetings:

End of
membership
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End of membership

The company has established a Register kept by the Board Secretary in which the Board meetings were
recorded with sequential numbers for the meetings held during the year, including details of those meetings
in terms of the date, time, beginning and end of the meetings, in addition to the meeting minutes of discussions,
deliberations, voting, and relevant documents. Members should have access to information and documents
at any fime, The Board Secretary updates the record and maintains the minutes of the meetings immediately
after the meeting, as he is in charge of those duties and is considered among his responsibilities approved by
the Board of Directors. ‘

The Independent Member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Tarig Fahad Al-Shaya, acknowledges thatthe
independence controls are in place (the acknowledgment copy is attached to the report).

The Independent Member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Ahmad Abdullatif Al-Luhaib, acknowledges that the
independence controls are in place (the acknowledgment copy is attached with the report).
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In line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Regulations (including Book 15 of the CMA
Executive Regulations- Corporate Governance), the company has adopted a set of internal policies and
regulations, including the management charters and approved frameworks. The Board of Directors
determines the powers and authorities that are delegated to the Executive Management within the
framework of official documents. The following are some examples of the mentioned duties and
responsibilities.

Segregation of the roles of the Chairman and CEQ of the company;
The segregation of the roles of the chairman and the CEO of the company continues to be fundamentally
different.

The chairman of the Board of Directors is a non-executive member charged with leading the board,
ensuring the effectiveness of its performance, and setting its agenda. in consultation with the company's
CEO and members of the Board of Directors.

The duties of the Chairman of the Board of Directors include facilitating dialogue in board meetings and
ensuring the proper functioning of the Executive Management,

The Board of Directors is composed of non-executive members who are elected during the General
Assembly to always ensure the independence of procedures and decisions and the number of these
members is sufficient to enable it to form the required number of commitiees at the level of the Board of
Directors. Below is a list of some of the specific roles and responsibilities allocated to members of the
Board of Directors and Executive Management,

» Approve strategic objectives and material plans and policies of the Company.

* Approve annual estimated budgets and interim and annual financial statements,

» Monitor the basic capital expenditures of the Company, ownership and disposal of assets.

» Approving and monitoring the progress made in relation tofinancial restructuring, as well as the
estimated annual budgets and dividends, and other matiers that affect the balance sheet, which
may include mergers, acquisitions, and divestment operations.

« Verify the Company’s compliance with policies and procedures to guarantee its respect of
applicable internal bylaws and regulations.

« Establishing effective communication channels that allow the shareholders of the company to be
continuously and periodically aware of the various activities of the company and any material
developments that occur with it.

* Ensure accuracy and soundness of data and information for disclosure in line with applicable
disclosure and transparency policies and regulations.

Develop and supervise a Corporate Governance system and monitor its effectiveness.
Follow-up performance of each member of the Board of Directors and Executive Management
according to Key Performance Indicators (KPis).

* Formation of the Board Commitiees amongst the existing Board members and in setting out the
Committee’s clear roles and responsibilities and the methodology of supervision by the Board of
Directors.

Apply a policy to regulate the relationship with key stakeholders in order to protect their rights.
Setand approve a system of delegation of powers that are granted to the Executive Management.
Set an internal control regulations and systems by determining the tasks, duties and
responsibilities of the different organizational levels.
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* Execute the Company's strategic plans, related policies and internal regulations and verify its
adequacy and efficiency.

* Prepare periodical (financial and non-financial) reports concerning the progress achieved within
the Company’s business.

+ Develop anintegrated accounting system and ensure that the preparation of financial statements
is conducted pursuant to international accounting standards approved by CMA.

* Managing the day-to-day business and running the activity, as well as optimally managing the
company’s resources.

* Actively participate in building and developing an ethical culture in the Company.
Develop internal control and risk management systems and verify their adequacy and efficiency.

22 Board of Directors’ achi t during

This year, the Board of Directors succeeded in adding to its successes and achievements as it
contributed to achieving strategic goals, including the following, for example:

Working to achieve the interests of shareholders and all stakeholders

Approving annual estimated budgets and interim and annual financial statements.

Approval of the business plan for ending on October 31, 2023.

Maintaining an integrated corporate governance framework and establishing its requirements.
Approving the amendment to the company’s new organizational structure.

Approve the reconstitution of the executive management.

Approving the review, development and updating of a number of company policies . chartersof the
Board of Directors and its committees.

23 Formi ializedindesendent it

Pursuant to the provisions and rules of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations ("Corporate
Governance®), the Board of Directors have formed the relevant Committees and the mechanism for the

flow of information. This is to support and enable board members to perform their roles and
responsibilities in a more effective manner.

Board Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed according to the decision of the Board of Directors on March 08,2020,
and the committee was reconstituted on March 19, 2023, as this committee performs the duties and
responsibilities of the company’s internal audit. This committee was formed for a period of three years
that can be renewed until the membership of any of the members expires, considering the provisions
and rules of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations ("*Corporate Governance®), The Secretary of the
Board of Directors has been appointed as the Secretary of the Committee to carry out the duties and
responsibilities assigned to his function.

» Reviewing the annual and interim financial data before presenting it to the board of
directors, expressing opinions, and making recommendations to ensure the fairness and
transparency of financial data and reports.

» Recommending the appointment and reappointment of external auditors, ensuring their
independence and refraining from providing any services to the company beyond what
auditing requires.

» Evaluating the sufficiency and effectiveness of internal control systems implemented
within the company and preparing a report that includes the committee's opinion and
recommendations on this matter.

* Reviewing and approving proposed audit plans from the internal auditor, overseeing
theirimplementation, as well as reviewing the results of internal audit reports and
regulatory authorities.

Annual Report2023




During the fiscal year ending on 31/10/2023, the Audit committee has conducted (10) meetings and
the following table portrays the attendance of the committee members:

End of membership -
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Achi is of the Board Audit C it

« The committee ensured the independence and of the external auditor during the year ending
3110/2023.

* The committee confirmed the independence of the internal audit function by reviewing the
independence letter submitted by the company's internal audit unit during the year,

+ The committee approved updating to its charter.

» Review the results of internal audit reports and follow up on the implementation of the
recommendations contained therein,

« View and review the follow-up reports submitted periodically by the Internal Audit Manager.

« The committee reviewed and discussed the field inspection report from the Capital Markets
Authority.

» Evaluating the performance of the Internal Audit Manager as of October 31, 2023.

* The report assuring the quality of internal audit function was reviewed and discussed.

« Review the internal control report (ICR). This report has been provided to the Capital Markets
Authority within the period specified in the executive regulations, which is 90 days from the end of
the company's financial year.

Board Risk C it

The Risk Committee was formed according to the resolution of the Board of Directors on March 08,
2020, and the committee was reconstituted on March 19, 2023, This committee performs the duties
and responsibilities of the risk management of the company. This committee was formed for a period
ofthree years that can be renewed until the membership of any of the members expires, considering
the provisions and rules of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance™), The
Secretary of the Board of Directors has been appointed as the Secretary of the Committee fo carry
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to his function.

» Set out and review risk management strategies and policies prior to approval by the Board of
Directors, and ensuring that these strategies and policies are implemented. and that they are
commensurate with the nature and size of the company’s activities,

« Ensure the availability of adequate resources and systems for risk management.

« Ensure that the risk management personnel have a full understanding of the risks that the company
is exposed to, and work to increase employees ‘awareness of the risk culture.

Ahmed Abdul Mohsen Al-Farhan “BoardMember Comeittee Member

Rick Committ tings durina

During the fiscal year ending on 31/10/2023, the Risk committee has conducted (5) meetings and the
following table portrays the atiendance of the committee members:
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» Discussing and approving the periodic risk assessment reports issued by the risk management
« Appointing a qualified risk office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was formed according to the decision of the Board of
Directors on March 08, 2020 and the committee was reconstituted on March19. 2023, This committee was
formed for a period of three years that can be renewed until the membership of any of the members
expires, considering the provisions and rules of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (*Corporate
Governance”), The Secretary of the Board of Directors has been appointed as the Secretary of the
Committee to carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to his function.

During the fiscal year ending on 31/10/2023, the Nomination and Remuneration committee has
conducted (6) meetings and the following table portrays the attendance of the committee
members:
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* Recommend acceptance of the nomination and re-nomination of the members of the Board of
Directors and Executive Management.

» Develop a clear policy for the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management.

+ Develop job descriptions for the Execulive member, the non-Executive members, and the
Independent Member.

» Ensure that the independence of the Independent Board Member is not negated.
Preparing a governance report on an annual basis that includes a report on the remuneration
granted to members of the Board of Directors, Executive Management, and managers/or their
equivalent according to the regulations.

» Approval of the evaluation of the members of the Board of Directors.

» Approving the final evaluation of the company's employees.

* Reviewing the job descriptions for independent members and non -executive members contained
in the Board of Directors’ charter.

» Ensure that the independent members of the Board of Directors do not lack independence.

» Preparing a report on the remuneration granted fo members of the Board of Directors, Executive
Management, and managers/or their equivalent, according to the regulations.

The company has adopted a mechanism for providing members of the Board of Directors with
information. Presenting and making all information and data available to the Board of Directors.
Therefore, the company's Board of Directors approved the duties and responsibilities of the board
secretary, which includes providing accurate and timely information and data to members of the Board
of Directors and ensuring the proper delivery and distribution of information and coordination between
Board members and among other stakeholders, including shareholders, other company depariments,
and employees. As well as the availability of all documents and reports related to any matters that are
included inthe agendas. The secretary, with the exception of emergency meetings, provides members of
the Board of Directors with these reports and documents for a sufficient period.
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The Board of Directors has formed a Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC). The BNRC
ensures that it satisfies all the requirements that need to be met by its committee members. Further, all
relevant BNRC information has been detailed within Pillar 2 of this report — Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (BNRC) - as mentioned in the above section 2.3.

The company’s commitment to applying standards of transparency is at the highest levels in pursuant of
the provisions of the leading practices, corporate governance rules, the Capital Markets Authority law
and its executive regulations and their amendments. The Nominations and Remunerations Committee
was keen to prepare a governance report, including a report on the remunerations granted to members
of the Board of Directors, Executive Management and managers, which contains the following
information:

1- Introduction to Remunerations Policy: To achieve the company, s goals in accordance with the
company's annual stimulate annual performance, the company has established an annual cash incentive
plan (Long-Term Incentive Plan).

2- Company policy: The company’s approved remuneration policy, represented by the long-term
incentive plan, aims to motivate all employees in line with their contributions to long-term growth and
success, and in a way that ensures compatibility with the annual strategic objectives, risk management
programs and sustainable growth of the company.

3- Evaluation of the performance of the members of the Board of Directors and their remuneration: The
remunerations are granted to the members of the Board of Directors based on the evaluation according
to the key objective performance indicators (KP1) and the evaluation process is led by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors with the participation of the independent members to evaluate the performance of the
Board as a whole and each member as well as the performance of the board committees and evaluate the
performance of the Executive Management on a regular basis (annual). Granted according to the
percentages approved in the policy and the company’s article of association.

4~ Evaluating the performance of the CEO and the Executive Management and remunerating them: The
members of the Board of Directors shall annually evaluate the performance of the CEOQ and the Executive
Management.

5- Remunerations segments: The company’s policy includes fixed bonuses, performance bonuses, end of
service benefits, in addition to the bonus increment. Further to the mentioned, annual bonuses and bonus
increments that are not fixed in terms of amount and frequency.
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B. Remunerations Report

Remunerations and benefs of Mambers of Board of Directors

Remunerations and benefls through the parent compary Remunsrations and benefils therough the subsidiaries
Variable
Fieed remeneration and banefits (Kuwaldi Variatis remuneration and bensfis Rxed remuseration ang benefils remunsratisn and
Tkl mumber Oinar) {Kuwaiti Dinar) (Kewais Cinar) terafits (Cswall
of membars Dirar)
Heakh Annual Remunsration® | Commiltess Health Maorkhly Amnual Remuseratisn | Commitiess
Insurance Remuseration Salary Remunaration
(Total of e
your)
Tmembers - 15,000 - - - - -

* The resnuneration shown for the two independent members of the Board of Directors will be paidin 2024 upon AGM approval of the fimancisl statements.

Total remanerations and benefils pranted to five senior execulives who have received the highest ramunerativas. This is in asgifion 12 the Chief Executive Officer and the Chisf
Financial Officer ortheir deputy, If not incladed

IR
positions a E .-'
IR In
i | |

There was no materisl devistions from the approved remuner afics policy.
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1 Sound {intearity of financial i

The Executive Management is mindful of its responsibilities to the Board of Directors with regards to the
significance of accounting policies and to the preparation of fair and sound financial statements. The
Executive Management has prepared and presented a written undertaking to the Board of Directors
confirming that financial statements have been prepared with integrity and that all financial aspects of the
Company arein line with approved international accounting standards.

The Board of Directors also undertakes to ensure the integrity of financial reporting to the Company’s
shareholders. The financial statements and reports issued by the Company are prepared as follows.

Annual Financial Statements.

Interim Financial Statements.

Annual and interim financial disclosure forms,

Annual and periodical reports related to the Company’s activity and the resulls of its operations.

42 Audit C it

The Board of Directors has formed an Audit Committee which ensures that it satisfies all the requirements
that need to be met by its commitiee members. Further, all relevant Audit Committee information has been p
within Pillar 2 of this report - Board Audit Committee- as mentioned in the above section 2.3.

The Board Audit Commitiee is formed and approved by the Board of Directors, members of the Audit
Committee carry out their tasks and responsibilities as per the Audit Committee Charter and provide a
recommendation to the Board of Directors for final approval. Given that Committee members have been
chosen spedifically to meet the requirements set out under the Audit Committee Charter, all
recommendations provided fo the Board of Directors are typically considered to be sound and effective.
During the year, the Committee did not report any contradictions or inconsistencies between Committee
recommendations presented to the Board and the resolutions of the Board of Directors passed through the

The company confirms, through the audit committee, that the external auditors are completelyindependent of
the company and its Board of Directors, and that they do not provide any services to the company other than
what is required by the external audit.

Risk management is one of the main concerns of the company's Board of Directors. The continuous
development and effective application of risk management is one of the most important goals to reach the
stability and continuity of the activity, as well as identifying risks at appropriate levels is crucial for the
company’s continued success. Therefore, the Board of Directors approved the appointment of an external firm
for risk management, which reports directly to the Risk Committee.
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5.2 Risk M { Committ

The Board of Directors has formed a Risk Committee which ensures that it satishies all the requirements
applicable to its committee members. Further, all relevant Risk Committee information has been portrayed
within Pillar 2 of this report - Board Risk Commitiee- as mentioned in the above section 2.3.

5.3 Internal Audit Systems and Controls

The Board of Directors is fully responsible for the internal control and control systems of the company, and
for that the Board of Directors has established internal policies, mechanisms and regulations in place to
ensure the internal control of the company. Also, the Audit Committee provides its reports and
recommendations to the Board of Directors. It is worth noting that the internal control and control systems
cover all the activities of the company and enhance the safety, accuracy and efficiency of its operations, The
principles of internal control have been considered for the process of double control in the organizational
structure of the company. represented in the following:

Determine the authorities and responsibilities accurately.

Complete segregation of duties and no conflict of interest.

Double screening and monitoring.

Double signature.

Approved policies and procedures for the company.

Adopting modern technological systems to implement the company's internal transactions.

In this regard, the accredited independent consulting firm (BDO) has been appointed to carry out the
evaluation and review of the internal control and to prepare a report in this regard (ICR), and the CMA was
provided with it within the legal period.

5.4 Independent Unit for Internal Audit and Control

The company implements the internal audit in an integrated and independent manner. The internal audit
function has been assigned to an independent internal audit unit, where the company’s internal auditor
carries out the internal audit completely. In addition, the company's internal audit is managed by an
independent, accredited external firm to ensure the highest quality in the company’s internal audit
department according to integrated auditing standards and plans approved by the audit commitiee. The
internal audit function also prepares reports in this regard, and they are submitted to the audit committee.

Inturn, the internal audit committee studies and analyzes these reports and issues the necessary
recommendations regarding them.

Pillar & P te Code of Conduct and Ethical Standard
¢ 1 Corde of Conduct and Business Ethi

The company is committed to applying standards of professional and ethical behavior in all its activities by
establishing an approved professional code of conduct that requires everyone concerned to adhere to the
highest ethical and professional standards at doing business, regardless of location and circumstances.
Respect, integrity, financial honesty, diversity, equal opportunities, health, and safety are among the most
important values and principles adopted by the company.
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. 2 Miliaate Conflicks of interect

The Board of Directors of the company has adopted a policy of conflict of interest, which aims to ensure the
implementation of appropriate procedures to discover cases of conflict of material interests and address
them effectively, and to ensure that the Board of Directors deals with cases of conflict of interest in a proper
manner and that all decisions are taken in a manner that fulfills the interests of the company. This policy is
anintegral part of the company’s full commitment to integrity and fairness in dealing with stakeholders. The
policy also highlights the concept of conflict of interest, the basis for dealing. how to manage conflict of
interest cases, the parties whose interests may conflict with the company and the role of the Board of
Directors, Executive Management and internal auditing regarding Concerning conflict of interest, the policy
also reviewed procedures for dealing with conflict-of-interest cases and the mechanism for their
disclosure.

Pillar 7:E Timel | High-Quality Discl
L1Accurate and transparent disclosures

The company’s Board of Directors is aware that accurate disclosure is a fundamental pillar for following up
the company’s activities and evaluating its performance at various levels for the current shareholders,
potential investors, and the public. Therefore, the company has been keen to develop a policy that includes
the applicable rules and procedures and the disclosure mechanism followed to complete the disclosure

process accurately andin a timely manner, in accordance with the provisions stated CMA Law, its Executive
bylaw, and the regulatory instructions and controls.

7.2 Disclosure records for members.c

The Company maintains a detailed disclosure register which includes and monitors all disclosure records
for Board Members and Executive Management. Such records are easily accessible on the Company’s
website by all shareholders without any additional fees or considerations. The Company regularly reviews
and updates the disclosure data and records to accurately reflect the Company's position.

73F tion of an Investor Relations Unit

The company has established a unit that organizes investor affairs and is responsible for making available
and providing data, information and reporis necessary for potential investors, and this unit has the
appropriate independence, allowing it to provide accurate and timely data, information, and reports
through common means of disclosure, including the company's website.

The company has developed its information technology and relying essentially on it in the process of
disclosure and communication with shareholders, investors, and stakeholders, by creating a special
section on the company's website that displays all information and data that help current and potential
shareholders and investors to exercise their rights and evaluate Company performance. The company’s
website is regularly developed to facilitate disclosures, and ease of use.
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8.1 Protection of Sharehoiders’ Right

The internal regulations and policies of the company included the procedures and controls necessary to
ensure that all shareholders exercise their rights in a manner that achieves equality, and in a manner that
does not contradict the laws and regulations in force, and the decisions and instructions issued in this

regard.

It also considers all the general rights of the shareholders equally without discrimination and ina manner
that does not harm the interests of the company or contradict the law and the instructions and supervisory
controlsissued.

8.2 Shareholders’ Information

For the accurate and continuous follow up of shareholders’ data, the Company formed a special register
“The Shareholders’ Register” to be maintained and updated with the specified clearing agency - the Kuwait
Clearing Company (KCC). This register includes names of shareholders, nationalities and details of the
number of shares they hold. The KCC also maintains any amendments to the existing data and records in
its register. Data incorporated in the shareholders’ register is treated with the greatest degree of
protection and confidentiality in line with applicable laws and regulations.

Participation in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is one of the basic rights for all shareholders and thus
shareholders are encouraged to attend and actively participate in these annual meetings. In order to ensure
the full extent of shareholder participation, certain measures are taken by the Company when calling for its
AGM including extending formal notices calling for its date, time and location, as well as sharing agenda
items for discussion, as per applicable laws and regulations.

The company adopted a policy of stakeholders, including rules and procedures that ensure protection and
recognition of the rights of stakeholders, considering the laws issued in this regard, instructions and
regulations.

The company encourages stakeholders to participate in the follow-up of the company's various activities by
obtaining information and data related to their activities, and to facilitate their reporting to the company’s
Board of Directors in safe ways about any improper practices they are exposed to by the company, if any.
while providing them with protection.
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Training and continuous gualification for members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management
is one of the basic pillars of governance, as it greatly contributes to enhancing the performance of the
company. Therefore, the company develops mechanisms and systems that allow members of the Board of
Directors and the Executive Management to obtain training programs and courses or attend conferences
related to the company’s work that burden their technical. administrative, and organizational expertise and
skills,

The company has systems and mechanisms for evaluating the performance of the company's Board of
Directors as a whole, and the performance of each member of the Board of Directors, the committees
emanating from it and the Executive Management, periodically through a set of indicators related to the extent
to which the strategic objectives of the company are achieved and that reflects the performance of both the
Board of Directors and the Executive Management to determine the strengths and aspects to be developed in
away that reflects on the training needs of the coming years.

10.3 Board of Directors’ Effart T ie Value Creation”

The Board of Directors works continuously to create corporate values (Value Creation) for the company’s
employees through procedures and mechanisms that work to achieve sirategic goals and improve
performance rates. The company also believes in the importance of encouraging employees to adopt positive
behavior and appreciating the exceptional efforts of distinguished employees. The company also adopts
integrated reporting systems in all departments and is working to develop them continuously to help both
members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management in taking decisions in a systematic and
accurate manner.

The concept of social responsibility in the company is represented in the continuous commitment to behave
ethically and contribute to achieving sustainable development for society in general and for the employees of
the company in particular. Therefore, the company has developed an internal policy aimed at achieving
balance between the goals of the company and the goals of society.

The company has plans and mechanisms that highlight the company's efforis in the field of social work and

the performance of duty towards society and the environment. During the reporting period the following
activities were carried out:

The company organized a blood donation campaign during the year 2023 in which the company’s employees
and management participated at all levels,

The company organized a beach cleaning campaign in which a number of volunteer company employees
participated, within the framework of social responsibility towards society and the environment.
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